 ERIE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES 
QUESTIONS & ANSWERS
RFP # 2026-008VF: Queuing Management System
Questions submitted via email and at the Informational Meeting on January 16, 2026 at  11:00 a.m.
1. Will Erie County provide a full inventory of existing kiosks, printers, and monitors for compatibility testing, or should vendors assume independent procurement of non‑proprietary hardware?
Erie County will provide a full inventory of existing kiosks, printers, and monitors

2. For multilingual kiosk interfaces, does the County expect vendors to provide translation services for all eight languages listed, or will Erie County supply translated content?
Erie County will provide translated text for all eight languages.

3. Regarding SMS notifications, will Erie County provide an SMS gateway or should vendors include third‑party SMS integration within their proposal?
Vendor should include third-party SMS integration with their proposal.

4. For reporting, does the County require real‑time dashboards accessible to administrators, or will scheduled reports (daily, monthly, annual) meet compliance requirements?
Erie County will require real time dashboards as well as scheduled reports.

5. In terms of system resilience, are there specific uptime or SLA thresholds (e.g., 99.9% availability) that vendors must guarantee?
Vendors must specify uptime excluding scheduled maintenance windows with priority given to a minimum system availability of 99.9%.  Vendors should define response times and resolution times for each category of critical, high priority and standard issues.

6. For Azure AD SSO integration, will Erie County provide test credentials and environment access during implementation, or should vendors propose independent configuration?
Erie County will provide test credentials and environment access during implementation.

7. Does Erie County anticipate expanding the system beyond the initial 11 queuing locations during the first contract term, or will expansion be considered only after renewal?
Erie County does not anticipate expanding the system beyond the initial 11 queuing locations during the first contract term.

8. Are there specific accessibility standards (WCAG 2.1 AA, Section 508) Erie County requires vendors to validate against for kiosk and portal interfaces?
Vendor should ensure that kiosks, monitors and web portals should comply with WCAG 2.1 Accessibility standards.

9. For training, does the County expect vendors to deliver on‑site sessions for staff, or will virtual training and documentation be sufficient?
Training may be delivered virtually with supporting documentation. Vendor may break out pricing for train the trainer model.

10. Definition of Queue Location: Can you clarify what is meant by a “queue location”? Does this refer to individual check-in stations, service departments, or physical waiting areas?
Queue location refers to a physical waiting area.

11. Distribution of Check-In Areas: How many citizen check-in areas are anticipated across the three buildings? Additionally, what services or departments will be assigned to each check-in area?
Rath Building Pearl Street Entrance:
1st floor – Temporary Assistance (ECWC, Homeless, Photo ID)
2nd floor – Temporary Assistance, Comprehensive Employment Division, Adult Protective Services
3rd floor – Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program, Public Health Insurance
4th floor – Unit 100, Emergency Services
Rath Building Franklin Street Entrance:
2nd floor – Office of Child Support Enforcement
4th floor  – Non-temporary Assistance Daycare
460 Main Street:
2nd floor –  HEAP
290 Main Street:
7th floor – Comprehensive Employment Division 
8th floor – Comprehensive Employment Division 
9th floor – Comprehensive Employment Division 
10th floor – Comprehensive Employment Division

12. Hardware Expectations: Will Erie County require new hardware (e.g., kiosks with printed tickets, tablets for paperless check-in, or monitors for waiting area screens)? Or should the vendor assume reuse of any existing infrastructure?
Vendor is to reuse existing equipment and ensure compatibility with pre-existing equipment listed in the RFP.

13. Multimedia/Communication Needs: During wait or service time, does the County intend to send SMS messages for status updates or display any messaging such as public service announcements, emergency alerts, or promotional content?
Current use case for SMS notifications is when a client voluntarily enters their phone for joining a queue.  At this point they should receive notifications for the following: confirms they are in line, updates as to their status upon request, tells them when they are close and should return to wait area, notifies when next in line, notifies when called, and notifies if missed call. In the future if we use appointments notifications would be used for the following: Appoint confirmation, 24hr reminder, 2hr reminder, checked in and called to window. There are currently no plans to use SMS messaging for public service announcements, emergency alerts, or promotional content.

14. Post-Service Feedback: Is the County interested in collecting post-service surveys (e.g., for customer satisfaction or NPS scoring)? If so, should the platform include survey delivery and analytics?
Post-service feedback is not a required aspect of the RFP.

15. Integration Requirements: Could Erie County share more specifics about any current backend systems the solution will need to integrate with (e.g., CRM, case management, scheduling tools)?
The only backend integration required is for SSO with Microsoft Azure Active Directory for user account authentication.

16. The RFP references 750 named agent users and 15 named admin users. Please confirm the expected peak concurrent number of agent users logged in at once (system-wide and per building/site).
We do not currently have a way to obtain this data but based on what data we can get we estimate that there is anywhere from 175 to 275 logged on at peak across the entire system.

17. Please clarify whether “750 named agent users” reflects total employee headcount, eligible users, or licensed users expected to access the QMS.
The Department has approximately 1,500 employees, but approximately 750 employees and 15 admins would utilize the queueing system. 

18. The RFP references 11 queuing locations across 3 buildings, with potential expansion to 24 locations. Please confirm the initial go-live scope (how many locations/queues in Phase 1) and whether expansion is in-scope for the initial contract period.
The initial go-live scope would be for 11 queuing locations across 3 buildings.  Expansion is undetermined at this time but is not planned for roll out or for first contract term.


19. Please clarify the intended triage model: should customers select service type at kiosk, should reception staff assign service type, or should both be supported?
Both customers and staff may select the service type.

20. Do you require priority handling (e.g., ADA accommodations, time-sensitive cases, appointment priority over walk-ins), and if so, what are the business rules?
Priority handling is triaged by the workers currently. In the future we may look at this type of triaging if possible but not planned for roll out. 

21. The RFP requires SMS notifications for “appointment reminders, queue updates, etc.” Please confirm the required SMS use cases (e.g., reminders, “you’re next,” called to window, missed-call follow-ups).
Current use case for SMS notifications is when a client voluntarily enters their phone for joining a queue.  At this point they should receive notifications for the following: confirms they are in line, updates as to their status upon request, tells them when they are close and should return to wait area, notifies when next in line, notifies when called, and notifies if missed call. In the future if we use appointments notifications would be used for the following: Appoint confirmation, 24hr reminder, 2hr reminder, checked in and called to window.

22. Please provide expected SMS volume (estimated monthly or annual messages) for pricing and capacity planning
SMS messaging is currently in used for only clients that voluntarily wish to use their phone number.  Currently about 10,000 client/visits per month enter their phone number voluntarily for SMS updated. Our approximate volume of all clients is 240,000 individuals annually. 

23. Will the County provide an SMS gateway/provider, or should the vendor provide SMS delivery as part of the solution?
Vendor should provide SMS delivery as part of the solution

24. Should customers be allowed to choose either appointment or walk-in for the same service, or will certain services be strictly appointment-only?
Currently we do not use appointments we would like the option for the future, but customers should be able to choose appointment or walk-in for all services.

25. The RFP requires “booking limits.” Please clarify whether booking limits should be enforced by (a) location, (b) service type, (c) staff member/resource, (d) time slot, or some combination.
Booking limits may be enforced by location, service type, staff or time slot depending on queue.




26. Do you require limits for same-day appointments, lead time, cutoff times, or maximum appointments per customer per day/week?
Currently we do not use appointments, but we would like the option for the future but not for roll out or within the first contract period. Limits are required for same-day appointments, lead time, cutoff times, or maximum appointments per customer per day/week.

27. When an appointment holder arrives, should they check in at a kiosk, with reception, or both?
If appointments were used this depends on the location, but not for roll out or within the first contract period.  In areas where a kiosk is available clients must use kiosk for checking in. In areas where there is not a kiosk, clients are expected to check in with reception.

28. The RFP references SMS notifications including “appointment reminders.” Please confirm whether you require confirmation, reminder cadence (e.g., 24h/2h), and cancel/reschedule links via SMS.
Currently we do not use appointments we would like the option for the future, but SMS appointment reminders should be sent at 24hrs/2hrs, with option to cancel and reschedule. This is not planned for roll out or within the first contract period.

29. Please provide expected appointment volume (monthly/annual), and peak daily appointment counts by location if available.
This information is unavailable as we currently do not use appointments, we would like the option for the future but not for roll out or within the first contract period.

30. Beyond Azure AD SSO, are there any required integrations with DSS case systems, document management, calendars, or reporting tools?
The only backend integration required is for SSO with Microsoft Azure Active Directory for user account authentication.

31. The RFP lists extensive reporting metrics (wait times, service durations, lifecycle across queues, delay to return after summoned, etc.). Please confirm the County’s definitions for wait time, service time, visit duration, and delay to return to ensure consistent reporting.
· Queue wait times –It is based on an estimated time a service transaction will take for each client times the number of clients currently in queue, less the time the first client has already waited plus one would determine the expected wait time for a new client to be added to a queue. From this estimate we would be able to determine if a client was going to be able to be served within the “expected” service time, if a worker or queue was within the expected wait times, if our service expected wait times need to be adjusted, and if staff need to be added for a service.
· Service durations – The time from client arriving after being summoned to a window, door, or other defined service area (desk, podium, etc.) until that service is completed by either sending clients to another queue to be serviced by another area or sending them home for the day. A visit duration would track the time the client spent in all queues and service areas during one visit on a day, calculating all Service duration and queue wait times.
· Outcomes over time - Outcome from summoning Arrived, removed from line by system, removed from line by worker, removed from line by client, left, no-show. Over time is date range and length of time in queue from check in to summons. Being able to filter by range down to a day and hour, by queue and worker.
· Service transactions by employee or queue - Each queue and employee has a list of transactions that they can complete but not all are completed with each service provided. At the end of each service transacted we would like to track what was provided so that it could be tracked by worker and queue, filtering by date, time, and duration.
· Delays – time for customers to return once summoned.  Time that it takes client to appear at summoned location when ticket called. Currently we re-queue them after a set period and recall them a second time before placing them in an expired status for a period. Knowing the average would allow for adjusting this time or checking environment for barriers to responding sooner. Filter by date, time, by queue and worker.
· Average number of queued customers by time - For a period, you can see the average number of clients waiting in a queue for services. If taken to the hour it would be a count. It would be used to determine heavy flow time to adjust staffing, determine trends, identify anomalies or changes occurring in trends. Filter by date, time, by queue and worker.
· Client flow across queues, locations, and services - Currently we can only follow a client through to completion at one location, we cannot see them in total when transferred to another location. We need the clients to be able to be followed from point of entry into the system through to the end of their day no matter how many requests, locations, or services they touch.
· Lifecycle report  - Life cycle report would show totality of the visit from point of completion.  We would be able to see each step of the visit for clients. What queue, what location, what worker, what services/transactions, times, delays, order of entries, summoning, requeues, and transaction completions. Common request from all levels of administration.
· Time spent in each queue
· Time at each location
· Time per service
· Overall visit duration and flow between locations per customer – time per location for entire visit -  See above lifecycle report. Total time spent in each location and total time spent. Some statistics on how often we are transferring between locations, common locations sharing clients and which direction are they going.

32. The RFP requires resilience to minor internet disruptions and no restart after wireless disruptions. Please confirm expectations for offline behavior (e.g., kiosk printing / serving during outage) and what duration of disruption should be tolerated.
Vendors must specify uptime excluding scheduled maintenance windows with priority given to a minimum system availability of 99.9%.  
33. Please confirm whether the County prefers a phased rollout by building/location or a single go-live date.
The Department prefers a phased rollout by location.

34. Please confirm the operating system versions in use on kiosk and display endpoints (Windows version/build, any kiosk lockdown tool), and any endpoint security constraints (whitelisting, policies).
Currently we have varied operating systems for kiosk and display endpoints.  Ideally, we want all devices to have minimally Windows 11 Enterprise Build 26200 running in kiosk mode. There are no endpoint security constraints.

35. For voice callouts, please confirm whether audio will play through TV speakers, dedicated speakers, or another audio system, and whether there are any accessibility requirements for callouts.
This depends on the area. The 1st floor of the Rath building uses dedicated speakers. All other locations use the TV speakers. There are no accessibility requirements.

36. Will the County evaluate the queuing system provider solely as a software provider, with the County retaining responsibility for procurement, ownership, maintenance, and replacement of all kiosks, printers, displays, and related hardware?
The County will retain responsibility for procurement, ownership, maintenance, and replacement of all kiosks, printers, displays, and related hardware.

37. Does the County have an existing SMS provider? If not, what is the estimated monthly/yearly SMS volume, and is SMS usage intended to be included within the funded USD 45,000 amount?
Vendor should include third-party SMS integration with their proposal.  Currently about 10,000 client/visits per month enter their phone number voluntarily for SMS updated. Our approximate volume of all clients is 240,000 individuals annually. 

38. Is training expected to be delivered remotely, in person, or via a hybrid model, and is training included within the funded USD 45,000 amount?
Training may be delivered virtually with supporting documentation. The funding amount includes training.  Vendor may break out pricing for train the trainer model.

39. Is the USD 45,000 funding intended as an annual budget or as a total budget for the full contract term, and does it include one-time costs (setup, configuration, development, hardware if required) or only recurring costs (software, hosting, support, maintenance)?
$45,000 is the annual funding amount for the scope of professional services outlined in the RFP.

40. Does the County intend to allow citizens to book appointments remotely (e.g., via web or mobile), including configurable qualification and validation steps designed to ensure citizens select the correct service and meet appointment requirements?
The Department is not intending to allow clients to book remotely at this time, but in the future we may expand this thought not for roll out or within first contract term.

41. If additional locations are added during the contract term, should pricing be prorated based on time and scope, or addressed during annual renewal?
There is no plan to expand queuing locations within the first contract term. Adding additional locations should be possible but pricing will be addressed in future renewals

42. Can the County confirm that Appendix A constitutes the complete technical and service delivery response, that proposals must be uploaded as exactly three separate documents (Appendix A, B, and C), and whether there are required file formats or naming conventions for uploads in the OnBase Unity Form system?
Appendix A constitutes the complete technical and service delivery response.  Each Appendix must be uploaded separately.  If needed, more than one upload may be made for each appendix.  There are no requirements for file formats or naming conventions.

43. Does the County require printed tickets, online tickets, or both?
The Department requires printed tickets for all clients. Printed tickets should be able to be obtained from all kiosks as well as reception/window workers. This include new tickets and reprints for lost tickets If using cell phone for registration this must be optional and clearly labelled as so.

44. For the Kiosk mentioned, can it print paper tickets similar to the Epson TM-88 also mentioned?
Yes, we use Epson TM-88 for all ticket printing.

45. If existing hardware is outdated or has End of Life, is the County interested in pricing on newer hardware?
If during launch it is determined that some equipment is end of life, hardware recommendations are appreciated, but final purchasing decision and purchasing is left to the county and pricing is not expected to be included in current RFP.

46. Operating System & Software Installation: Can the County confirm whether kiosk and media PCs run Windows 10 (Pro, IoT LTSC) or Windows 11 (Pro or Enterprise), and whether installation of vendor-supplied third-party applications is permitted on these devices?
Kiosks and media PCs should use kiosk mode with Windows 11 Enterprise Build 26200. RFP is for a web base cloud application and should not require installation of vendor supplied third-party applications
47. Kiosk Mode & Endpoint Management: Will the County allow installation of a vendor-supplied Windows kiosk client that operates as a locked-down application shell (rather than browser-based kiosk mode), including any required Group Policy, MDM, Intune, or SCCM policy exceptions?
No, application is required to operate with browser based kiosk mode in Windows 11.

48. Security Controls & Administrative Access: Are there any cybersecurity, antivirus, or application control policies (e.g., AppLocker or Defender Application Control) that could restrict execution of vendor-installed kiosk applications, and can temporary or supervised local administrator access be provided for installation, configuration, updates, and troubleshooting?
This bid is for strictly for a web based cloud application and application is required to work with Windows 11 kiosk mode. Vendor access accounts are available to be setup if required. Erie County deploys a few cybersecurity, antivirus, or application control policies; We will work to get any application whitelisted and approved though internal security systems.

49. Displays & Network Connectivity: Can the County confirm that large public display screens may use browser-based access via a standard URL, and that kiosks and media PCs will have persistent internet connectivity with outbound HTTPS access and no proxy or firewall restrictions that would impact system operation?
Large public display may use browser-based access via a standard URL via micro PC or thin client setup in Windows 11 Kiosk mode.  All devices have internet access, some are wired and some are wireless.  We are unable to convert area with wireless to wired internet due to build constraints.  Kiosks and media PCs will have persistent internet connectivity with outbound HTTPS access and no proxy or firewall restrictions that would impact system operation. Any security issues will be resolved during launch if they involve whitelisting etc.


